
 
Planning Board 

Meeting Agenda 
 

June 17, 2014 
immediately following the Board of Adjustment meeting at 7:00pm 

Council Chambers, 201 S Main St 

Invocation 

1. Approve minutes of the May 20, 2014 meeting 

2. Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401). Request by Chase Brooks for a Special Use Permit 
for Electronic, Internet or Sweepstakes Gaming for property located at 107 E Shannon Dr 
(GPIN 8883421261). 

3. 220 W Harden Multifamily (RZ1405). Request by Third Wave Housing to rezone property located at 
220 W Harden St (GPIN 8884045747) from Light Industrial (I-1) to Residential (multifamily) (R-MF). 

4. Granite Cellular Communication Tower (SUP1403). Request by Tower Engineering Professionals for a 
Special Use Permit for a Cellular Communication Tower on a portion of property located on 
E Hanover Rd (GPIN 8884392495). 

A complete agenda packet is available at www.cityofgraham.com 



510    

    
  

PLANNING ZONING BOARD 
Tuesday, May 20, 2014 

 
The Planning & Zoning Board held its regular meeting on Tuesday, May 20, 2014 in the Council Chambers of 
the Graham Municipal Building immediately following the Board of Adjustment meeting at 7:00 p.m. Board 
members present were Ricky Hall, Bill Teer, Andy Rumley, Dean Ward, Bonnie Blalock, Michael Benesch and 
Tim Beshel. Staff members present were Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner and Martha Johnson, 
Zoning/Inspections Technician. 
 
Chairman Andy Rumley called the meeting to order and explained the function of the Board. 
 
Invocation was given by Ricky Hall.   
 
1. Approve minutes of the April 15, 2014 meeting.  Ricky Hall made a motion to approve, second by Bonnie 
Blalock. All voted in favor.  
 
2. Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401). Request by Chase Brooks for a Special Use Permit for 
Electronic, Internet or Sweepstakes Gaming for property located at 107 E Shannon Dr (GPIN 8883421261) was 
continued from the April 15, 2014 meeting. Ricky Hall made a motion to table this item until the Board of 
Adjustment finished the case, second by Dean Ward. All voted aye.  
 
3. Providence Foster Respite for Children (SUP1402). Request by Mollissie Peterson for a Special Use Permit 
for a Group Home at property located at 306 Providence Rd. Mollissie Peterson of 704 Orange Ct, Elon, the 
director of Alamance Academy, spoke. Ms. Peterson stated this is a 5100 Community Respite for children 
where they work to stabilize the children so they can go into individual homes instead of group homes. 
Ms. Peterson said there would be 2 employees per shift with up to 4 children in the home with a length of the 
stay being no more than 30 days in most cases.  
 
Bill Teer asked the ages of the children and Ms. Peterson said from 12 to 17. Bonnie Blalock asked if this home 
would be a bridge between home and foster home to keep them from a group home. Ms. Peterson said it was 
and this particular home would be all boys. Dean Ward asked the number of bedrooms and Ms. Peterson said 
three. Mr. Ward asked if the children were home schooled. Ms. Peterson said they go to school and she also has 
a paid tutor when they need extra help. Andy Rumley asked if the children are able to continue in the schools 
they previously attended. Ms. Peterson stated they try to keep them in their same schools so they will have less 
adjusting.  
 
Andy Rumley asked about a policy for bad behavior. Ms. Peterson said they have consequences and she can 
discharge them back to their guardians. Dean Ward asked the square footage of the house and Ms. Peterson said 
approximately 1200 square feet. Mr. Ward said the Alamance County GIS is showing about 800 square feet and 
he has concerns about 6 people being in a small house. She said the staff doesn’t have a bedroom. 
 
Delmonte Blackwell currently of 306 Providence Rd spoke next. Mr. Blackwell works for Ms. Peterson and 
stated this is not a group home but it is providing community respite for these young men until other places are 
found for them.  
 
Michael Benesch asked Mr. Blackwell how long he had lived there and he replied 3 to 4 years. Mr. Benesch 
asked if he had talked to his neighbors about this project. Mr. Blackwell stated he had talked to some of the 
neighbors but not to the property owners and he hasn’t heard anything negative from anyone.  
 



  
 511 

    
Darryl Peebles 315 Climax St had a question concerning liability for theft or property damage. Ms. Peterson 
said she has a million dollar coverage liability for her vehicles and facility but she has never had that to happen 
in the last 8 years. Mr. Peebles stated his concerns are to protect the children. He said he has lived there for 35 
years and he has observed crime in that area. Ms. Peterson said she treats these children like they are her own 
and she protects them just like she would anywhere else. Mr. Peebles is concerned about the number of vehicles 
in the back. Ms. Peterson said they have a van and the employees would have their vehicles.  
 
Michael Benesh said he has problems with immediate danger with the neighborhood and as a Board it does 
comply provided it doesn’t mess up the harmony in that area along with nothing negative has come from the 
neighbors. Tim Beshel said he didn’t feel the space is a problem and he feels it is a great thing they are doing. 
 
Michael Benesh made a motion to approve, second by Tim Beshel. The vote was 3 to 3 with dissenting votes 
from Bonnie Blalock, Dean Ward and Ricky Hall. Mr. Teer did not vote because he had to leave the meeting 
prior to this vote being taken. 
 
4. Chase and Halsey Apartments (RZ1404). Request by Chris Foust to rezone property located on Chase and 
Halsey Streets (GPIN 8874799174) from Residential (low density) (R-18) to Residential (multifamily) (R-MF). 
Chris Foust of 1851 S Main St the applicant spoke. Mr. Foust showed the Board some pictures and stated that 
these apartments would be similar to the ones on Parker Street and it would be 16 units. He will be running a 
sewer line from Burlington to Halsey Street for the City of Graham to tie on to. He will have two entrances with 
one on Halsey and one on Chase. He has to extend the water line down Halsey St a bit to his property.   
 
Dean Ward asked what the exterior will be and Mr. Foust said it would be siding. Mr. Ward also asked if the 
apartments will be single story and Mr. Foust said single on the ends and double in the middle with a total of 16 
if possible with the setbacks. Mr. Benesch asked if he had talked to the neighbors and he said no.  
 
Lane Lewter of 702 Halsey St, Cheryl Lewter of 702 Halsey St and Frank Wrenn of 2210 Hwy 49 N all voiced 
concerns with various stormwater issues in that area, sewer line issues, increase in traffic in that area, crime and 
noise. Mr. Lewter asked about the rental cost and Mr. Foust said from $600-$700 per month. Ms. Lewter asked 
how far off of her property line would these apartments be and Ms. Guilbeau said the setback was 25’ feet. 
 
Dean Ward said the Chase Street area for many years has had a trash problem and he had rode by there and seen 
trash thrown on the road in front of where this project is going. Mr. Ward feels a big portion of this problem 
would be eliminated if something was built on this property. He noticed numerous duplexes in that area so there 
is already multifamily in that area. Mr. Ward felt it would be a positive effect on the area. 
 
Ricky Hall made a motion for a favorable recommendation, second by Dean Ward. All voted aye.  

 
No further business the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted,  
Martha Johnson 
Inspections/Zoning Technician 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner 

Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center 
(SUP1401) 

Type of Request: Special Use Permit 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 15 and May 20, 2014 
City Council on May 6 on June 3, 2014 

Contact Information 
Chase Brooks 
1611 Parham Dr, Graham, NC  27253 
336-740-0709; chaselivelife@gmail.com 
 

Summary 
This is a request for a Special Use Permit for electronic, internet 
or sweepstakes gaming at 107 E Shannon Dr. There is an existing 
building on the property that contains a garden center. The 
internet marketing center is proposed to share the building with 
the garden center. 

 

Because this is a new use for the property, the development will 
be required to comply with off-street parking requirements. As of 
the writing of this staff report, a plot plan showing how off-street  
parking requirements will be met had not been submitted. 

Location 
107 E Shannon Dr 

GPIN: 8883421261 

Proposed Special Use 
Electronic, Internet or 
Sweepstakes Gaming 

Current Zoning 
General Business (B-2) 

Overlay District 
None 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-18, B-2 & I-1 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family Houses, General 

Businesses and Industrial 

Size 
1.56 acres 

Public Water & Sewer 
Water along S Main St 

No Sewer 

Floodplain 
No 

Staff Recommendation 
Denial 



Staff Report, Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401) Page 2 of 4 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

Because this is a change of use that results in an increase of two in the Land Use Classification number, 
the development will be required to comply with landscaping requirements and those shall apply to the 
entire lot. As of the writing of this staff report, a plot plan showing how landscaping requirements will 
be met had not been submitted. 

Conformity to the Growth Management Plan (GMP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Applicable Goals to Guide Us into the Future 

· 6.3.2. Encourage commercial development within designated 
village centers as opposed to continued commercial strip 
development. The special use permit would permit a type of 
commercial development in a designated village center. 

· 6.3.4. Promote the location of mixed-use development at 
designated village centers. The special use permit would 
allow a development with two commercial uses in a 
designated village center. 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

· 7.5.4.1.2. Encourage commercial development in the district 
in village and neighborhood centers to serve the residents of 
South Graham. This pattern should be promoted over the 
highway commercial/strip development that has occurred 
along S Main St. The special use permit would permit a type 
of commercial development in a designated village center. 

DRAFT Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
In granting a special use permit, the City Council shall find that all 
of the six conditions listed below have been met, or it shall be 
denied. Staff has prepared the following DRAFT findings of fact 
for each of the six conditions. These findings should be modified 
by the Council as it considers its decision. 

1. All applicable regulations of the zoning district in which the 
use is proposed are complied with. 
The property is zoned B-2. “Electronic, Internet or Sweepstakes Gaming” is permitted in this zoning 
district with a Special Use Permit. The proposed internet marketing center will be located in the 
existing building, which appears to meet the area, height and yard regulations. Any new signs will 
require a sign permit. 

2. Conditions specific to each use, identified by the Development Ordinance, are complied with. 
As of the writing of this staff report, a plot plan demonstrating that off-street parking and 
landscaping could be complied with had not yet been submitted. There are also a number of 
requirements specific to this Special Use Permit: 
o This use cannot be located closer than 1000 feet to another Electronic, Internet or Sweepstakes 

Gaming establishment; closer than 1000 feet to a public or private elementary or secondary 
school, child day care center or nursery school, public park, church or community college; or closer 

Planning District 
South 

Development Type 
Village Center, Traditional 

Neighborhood Development and  
Neighborhood Residential 

For single family residential, 
townhouses, apartments & 

condominiums, commercial, 
office/institutional and mixed use 

Characteristics include open 
space; parks included with 
development; pedestrian-

oriented; automobile-oriented; 
design requirements; sidewalks; 

street trees; landscaping; 
buffering/screening; parking 
provided on-site; height of 

structures regulated; controlled 
access; building orientation 

Density of 3+ DU/acre or  
10,001 to 100,000sf of retail 

Infrastructure includes  
water, sewer, street connectivity 

and underground utilities 



Staff Report, Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401) Page 3 of 4 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

than 500 feet to a bar or night club, as measured from property line to property line. The proposed 
internet marketing center is located roughly 915 feet from Bethany Presbyterian Church which is 
located at 1501 S Main St. 

o No other principal or accessory use may occupy the same building or property with any Electronic, 
Internet or Sweepstakes Gaming establishment. The proposed internet marketing center will 
occupy the same building and property as an existing garden center. 

o Flashing lights or fluttering devices designed and used to attract attention are not permitted. The 
application does not mention or address this. 

o Sound amplification shall not be directed outside. The application does not mention or address 
this. 

o Alcohol may not be consumed on sold on the premises. The application states that no alcohol will 
be permitted. 

o No person under age 18 may be allowed in the establishment and age must be verified for each 
customer at the time of entry into the establishment. The application does not mention or address 
this. 

o Staff has reviewed the application and has no reason to believe that it contains any misstatements 
of fact. 

o Staff had a criminal background check done by the Graham Police Department and has verified 
that the applicant has not been convicted of a felony within the past three years. 

o The proposed site must meet building and fire prevention codes. A stop work order for interior 
renovations to the existing building was issued on March 11, 2014 due to misrepresentation in the 
building permit application of the type of use that would occupy the space. Building permit #5138 
was issued for interior renovations consisting of partition walls for a portion of the building at 
107 E Shannon Dr to be used for office space; this permit was revoked on 3/11/2014. 

3. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed and 
developed according to the plan as submitted. 
The proposed internet marketing center will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 

4. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property or that the use is a public 
necessity. 
The proposed internet marketing center will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property. 

5. The location and character of the use if developed according to the plan as submitted will be in 
harmony with the area in which it is to be located and in general conformity with the plan of 
development for the Graham planning area. 
The proposed internet marketing center is a commercial use that will be located adjacent to other 
existing commercial uses and is in general conformity with the Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020. 

6. Satisfactory provision has been made for the following, when applicable: vehicle circulation, parking 
and loading, service entrances and areas, screening, utilities, signs and lighting, and open space. 
As of the writing of this staff report, a plot plan showing vehicle circulation and parking had not been 
submitted. 



Staff Report, Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401) Page 4 of 4 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the Growth Management Plan 2000-2020 and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, 
staff recommends denial of the Special Use Permit. The following supports this recommendation: 

· The development does not comply with the requirements of the Development Ordinance. It is 
located within 1000 feet of a church and will occupy the same building and property as an existing 
garden center. 

· The development does not meet all six conditions required by Section 10.144 of the Development 
Ordinance, specifically condition #2. 











































PLANNING BOARD 
Recommendation & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. The Planning Board shall advise and comment on 
whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the “City of Graham 
Growth Management Plan 2000-2020” and any other officially adopted 
plan that is applicable. The Planning Board shall provide a written 
recommendation to the City Council that addresses plan consistency and 
other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a 
comment by the Planning Board that a proposed amendment is 
inconsistent with the “City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020” shall not preclude consideration or approval of the proposed 
amendment by the City Council. 

 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL of the application as presented. 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL with the following conditions: 

o  [Insert additional or other conditions] 

 I move to recommend DENIAL. 

 
 The application is consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-2020. 

 The application is not fully consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020. 

 

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the 20th day of May, 2014. 

Attest: 

  
Andy Rumley, Planning Board Chairman 

  
Martha Johnson, Secretary 

Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center  
(SUP1401) 

Type of Request 
Special Use Permit 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on April 15, 2014 

City Council on May 6, 2014 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner 

220 W Harden Multifamily (RZ1405) 

Type of Request: Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 
City Council on July 1, 2014 

Contact Information 
Third Wave Housing 
463 ½ Carolina Cir, Winston-Salem, NC 27104 
904-616-2643; admin@thirdwavehousing.com 

Summary 
This is a request to rezone the subject property from I-1 to R-MF. 
The property is currently occupied by a vacant industrial building. 
The stated reason for this rezoning request is “we are doing an 
adaptive reuse of the mill building into apartments using the 
existing interior spaces.” 

 

 

 

 

 

Location 
220 W Harden St 

GPIN: 8884045747 

Current Zoning 
Light Industrial (I-1) 

Proposed Zoning 
Residential (multifamily) (R-MF) 

Overlay District 
none 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-12, R-MF, O-I & B-2 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single family, Offices,  

General Business and Vacant 

Size 
0.82 acres 

Public Water & Sewer 
Water on W Harden St 

Sewer to W Elm St 

Floodplain 
No 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval 



Staff Report, 220 W Harden Multifamily (RZ1405) Page 2 of 2 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 

Conformity to the Growth Management Plan (GMP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Applicable Goals to Guide Us into the Future 

· 6.1.2. Continue to support efforts that identify, restore 
and/or reuse cultural and historic structures, buildings, 
monuments and neighborhoods. Rezoning the property to  
R-MF would allow the reuse of a vacant industrial building 
into dwelling units. 

· 6.3.1. Encourage the conversion and development of higher 
density residential development around the downtown and 
other designated activity areas. The rezoning would allow for 
higher density residential development within the Town 
Center area. 

· 6.3.1. Prohibit residential development that is in close 
proximity to incompatible uses or provide proper buffering to 
protect existing uses and new development. The rezoning 
would provide a transition zone between the existing single 
family neighborhood and W Harden St/downtown businesses, 
instead of the current light industrial designation. 

· 6.3.8. Encourage the reuse and revitalization of unused or 
underutilized structures and properties. The rezoning would 
permit the reuse of a deteriorating historic structure into 
dwelling units. 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

· 7.3.4.1.1. Encourage infill development within the district, as well as redevelopment efforts of 
deteriorating structures. The rezoning would permit the redevelopment of a deteriorating historic 
structure into dwelling units. 

· 7.3.4.1.3. Preserve established residential neighborhoods within the district. Rezoning to R-MF 
would be a more compatible land use than I-1 adjacent to an existing single family neighborhood. 

· 7.3.4.1.6. Continue to encourage the redevelopment efforts underway within the Town Center. The 
rezoning would permit the redevelopment of a deteriorating historic structure into dwelling units. 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the Growth Management Plan 2000-2020 and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, 
staff recommends approval of the rezoning. The following supports this recommendation: 

· Rezoning the property would be consistent with the Town Center development type and would 
further goals and policies of the Growth Management Plan. 

Planning District 
North 

Development Type 
Town Center 

Located near a major 
thoroughfare 

For single family residential, 
townhouses, apartments & 

condominiums, commercial, 
office/institutional and mixed use 

Characteristics include  
pedestrian-oriented; design 

requirements; sidewalks;  
street trees; height of structures 
regulated; building orientation 

Density of 5+ DU/acre or  
10,000 to 100,000sf of retail 

Infrastructure includes  
water, sewer, street connectivity 

and underground utilities 





PLANNING BOARD 
Recommendation & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. The Planning Board shall advise and comment on 
whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the “City of Graham 
Growth Management Plan 2000-2020” and any other officially adopted 
plan that is applicable. The Planning Board shall provide a written 
recommendation to the City Council that addresses plan consistency and 
other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a 
comment by the Planning Board that a proposed amendment is 
inconsistent with the “City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020” shall not preclude consideration or approval of the proposed 
amendment by the City Council. 

 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL of the application as presented. 

 I move to recommend DENIAL. 

 
 The application is consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-2020. 

 The application is not fully consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020. 

 

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the 17th day of June, 2014. 

Attest: 

  
Andy Rumley, Planning Board Chairman 

  
Martha Johnson, Secretary 

220 W Harden Multifamily  
(RZ1405) 

Type of Request 
Rezoning 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 

City Council on July 1, 2014 



STAFF REPORT 
Prepared by Melissa Guilbeau, City Planner 

Granite Cellular Communication Tower 
(SUP1403) 

Type of Request: Special Use Permit 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 
City Council on July 1, 2014 

Contact Information 
Tower Engineering Professionals 
3703 Junction Blvd, Raleigh, NC 27603 
919-661-6351; jcosgrove@tepgroup.net 
 

Summary 
This is a request for a Special Use Permit for a cellular 
communication tower on a portion of property located on 
E Hanover Rd. The property is currently vacant. 

 

The following was submitted as part of the application package: 
· Preliminary site plan 
· Engineered fall zone letter 
· Pictures of existing vegetation 
· Letter regarding application to the FAA and FCC 
· Letter regarding availability of existing structures 
· Maps showing existing and proposed cellular coverage in the tower area 

Location 
E Hanover Rd 

GPIN: 8884392495 

Proposed Special Use 
Cellular Communication Tower 

Current Zoning 
Light Industrial (I-1) 

Overlay District 
None 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-7, R-G & I-1 

Surrounding Land Uses 
Single Family Houses & Vacant 

Size 
0.15 acres 

Public Water & Sewer 
Water and Sewer  
on E Hanover Rd 

Floodplain 
No 

Staff Recommendation 
Approval, with conditions 



Staff Report, Granite Cellular Communication Tower (SUP1403) Page 2 of 6 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 

The proposal is for a 150’ monopole wireless telecommunications facility to be developed in accordance 
with the preliminary site plan prepared by Tower Engineering Professionals and dated May 22, 2014. 
The facility will be located on the far western side of the 16.11 acre parcel and will occupy a 100’x100’ 
lease area. Access to the area will be from E Hanover Rd via a 12’ wide gravel drive. One off-street 
parking space is provided. The facility will be designed to allow for future co-location. One 230sf 
appurtenant structure is proposed with space for five additional structures (one each for up to five 
future co-locators). The facility will be surrounded by an 8’ high chain link fence topped with barbed 
wire and proposes to use existing vegetation to meet screening and landscaping requirements.  

 



Staff Report, Granite Cellular Communication Tower (SUP1403) Page 3 of 6 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 

Technical Review Committee 
The TRC reviewed the preliminary site plan and met with the applicant on May 19, 2014. The applicant 
submitted a revised preliminary site plan on May 23, 2014. The following TRC comments have not been 
addressed: 

· For the special use permit, will need certification that the tower operations will not interfere with 
normal radio and television reception in the vicinity 

Conformity to the Growth Management Plan (GMP) and Other Adopted Plans 
Applicable Goals to Guide Us into the Future 

· 6.1.3. Enforce landscaping standards to help beautify and 
buffer development sites. The applicant proposes to meet 
screening and landscaping requirements using existing 
vegetation. 

· 6.2.3. Plan for the construction of new [community] facilities 
in areas of the City that are lacking facilities. The proposed 
tower is located in an area that currently has poor wireless 
coverage. 

Applicable Planning District Policies and Recommendations 

· None are applicable 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
In granting a special use permit, the City Council shall find that all of the six conditions listed below have 
been met, or it shall be denied. Staff has prepared the following DRAFT findings of fact for each of the 
six conditions. These findings should be modified by the Council as it considers its decision. 

1. All applicable regulations of the zoning district in which the use is proposed are complied with. 
The proposed tower facility meets the area, height and yard regulations of the I-1 zoning district. It 
will meet all performance standards for uses in the I-1 and I-2 zoning districts once a letter certifying 
that the tower operations will not interfere with normal radio and television reception in the vicinity 
is received. 

Planning District 
North 

Development Type 
Neighborhood Residential 

Located near a major 
thoroughfare 

For single family residential  
and townhouses 

Characteristics include  
open space; parks included with 

development; pedestrian-
oriented; automobile-oriented; 

sidewalks; street trees; 
landscaping 

Density of 3+ DU/acre 

Infrastructure includes  
water, sewer, street connectivity 

and underground utilities 



Staff Report, Granite Cellular Communication Tower (SUP1403) Page 4 of 6 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 

2. Conditions specific to each use, identified by the Development Ordinance, are complied with. 
The following requirements are specific to this use: 
o There is no requirement for off-street parking. However, one parking space is being provided. 
o A Type D planting yard is required where the tower site is closest to the western property 

boundary. The screening requirement for towers fulfills and exceeds this landscaping requirement. 
o The minimum distance from the base of the tower to the nearest property line shall be equal to or 

greater than the height of the tower. The city council shall have the option to waive this provision 
upon receiving documentation from the petitioner that the tower is engineered such that in the 
event of collapse, the tower will fall upon itself within the property boundaries upon which it is 
located. This option may require the establishment of a setback equivalent to a fall zone easement 
certified by a professional engineer registered in North Carolina. In any case, the minimum setback 
for a tower and all appurtenant structures shall be 25 feet from the nearest property line. An 
engineered fall zone letter certified by a NC professional engineer was submitted stating that, if 
collapse should occur, the tower will be designed so that the fall will be limited so that the tower 
will be contained within a 75-foot radius and within the property boundaries upon which it is 
located. Further, the tower and all appurtenant structures are located no closer than 30 feet from 
the nearest property line. 

o No freestanding or guyed tower may be constructed closer than the tower’s height from any public 
right-of-way. The 150’ high tower is located approximately 430’ from E Hanover Rd and 800’ from 
the railroad right-of-way. 

o Appurtenant structures shall be unmanned and be limited to 240sf for each tower and co-locater. 
Setback for these structures shall be at least 15 feet from any property line. One 230sf appurtenant 
structure is proposed for the one proposed occupant, as well as space for one appurtenant 
structure for each of up to five co-locaters. All appurtenant structures are located 30 feet or more 
from the nearest property line. 

o The base of the tower, including but not limited to equipment and/or storage structures, shall be 
enclosed by a commercial grade chain link fence a minimum of eight feet in height. An 8’ high 
commercial grade fence topped with barbed wire is proposed to surround a 98’x98’ area around 
the base of the tower and all appurtenant structures. 

o A vegetative screen shall be planted around the security fence consisting of at least two staggered 
rows of evergreen shrubs on five feet centers, at least five feet tall at the time of planting, unless 
existing vegetation or topography is determined to provide screening at least as effective as the 
planted screening. The applicant proposes to use existing vegetation to meet screening 
requirements and has submitted pictures showing the existing vegetation. 

o The applicant shall provide letters from all applicable government regulatory agencies verifying 
that the agency’s requirements have been met. The applicant has provided a letter stating that 
they have filed an application with the FAA and once FAA approval is received, they will file an 
application with the FCC. 

o The output for towers shall not exceed federally approved levels for exposure to electronic 
magnetic force. The petitioner shall also certify that the tower operations will not interfere with 
normal radio and television reception in the vicinity. These two requirements have not been 
addressed. 

o Towers shall be provided with warning lights pursuant to FAA and FCC guidelines. The preliminary 
site plan provides that “tower shall be illuminated only as required by the FCC, FAA or other state 
or federal agency of competent jurisdiction.” 



Staff Report, Granite Cellular Communication Tower (SUP1403) Page 5 of 6 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 

o Towers established pursuant to this ordinance and greater than 75 feet in height shall be located 
no closer than one mile from another tower greater than 75 feet in height. The council shall have 
the option to waive this provision if it is determined that a less objectionable site can be 
established at a closer location, or that other sites are not suitable for proper coverage. The closest 
existing tower is located in the vicinity of Queen Ann St and Longest St in Burlington, about 
1.2 miles from the proposed tower. 

o Towers less than 150 feet in height shall be adequately designed and of sufficient height to 
accommodate at least one additional user. Towers greater than 150 feet in height shall be 
designed to accommodate multiple additional users. A professional engineer shall present 
documentation that the tower has sufficient structural integrity to accommodate more than one 
user. The proposed tower facility is shown on the preliminary site plan to accommodate up to six 
total users. The preliminary site plan is sealed by a professional engineer. 

o The applicant shall present documentation that no suitable existing facilities within the coverage 
area are available to the applicant. The applicant submitted a letter stating that there were no 
existing towers within their search area nor were there any structures of sufficient height available 
for co-location. 

o Towers are not permitted in a designated historic district or on property on which a designated 
historic landmark is located. In addition towers shall not be constructed within 350 feet of a 
designated historic district or an historic landmark. The proposed tower is not located on or within 
350 feet of a designated historic district or landmark. 

o Outside storage is not permitted on the tower site. No outside storage is shown on the preliminary 
site plan. 

3. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed and 
developed according to the plan as submitted. 
The tower has been designed to fall upon itself, is located 75 feet from the nearest property line, is 
located more than 150 feet from any public right-of-way, and will be certified to not interfere with 
normal radio and television reception in the vicinity. 

4. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property or that the use is a public 
necessity. 
The use is a public necessity as wireless coverage in the area is shown to currently be poor. 

5. The location and character of the use if developed according to the plan as submitted will be in 
harmony with the area in which it is to be located and in general conformity with the plan of 
development for the Graham planning area. 
The area is currently a mix of vacant, light industrial, and single family and manufactured homes. 
The tower will be located approximately 330 feet from the nearest primary structure. 

6. Satisfactory provision has been made for the following, when applicable: vehicle circulation, parking 
and loading, service entrances and areas, screening, utilities, signs and lighting, and open space. 
Requirements for screening and lighting have been satisfactorily addressed. 



Staff Report, Granite Cellular Communication Tower (SUP1403) Page 6 of 6 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 

Staff Recommendation 
Based on the Growth Management Plan 2000-2020 and the City of Graham Development Ordinance, 
staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit, with the following conditions: 

· After the area is cleared, staff will evaluate the site to determine if the remaining existing vegetation 
meets the requirements of the ordinance and will require plantings if it does not. 

· A Building Permit will not be granted until the applicant submits letters from the FAA and FCC 
verifying that the agency’s requirements have been met and a letter certifying that the tower 
operations will not interfere with normal radio and television reception in the vicinity. 

The following supports this recommendation: 

· The development furthers goals of the Growth Management Plan. None of the development types 
described in the Growth Management Plan addresses the location of utilities. 

· The development will comply upon final site plan approval with the standards of the Development 
Ordinance. 

· The development will meet all six conditions required by Section 10.144 of the Development 
Ordinance if approved with the recommended conditions. 























INDEX OF SHEETS

SHEET DESCRIPTION

54182

PROJECT INFORMATION

PROPOSED WIRELESS

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

FACILITY

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

TOWER TYPE:

SITE ADDRESS:

150' MONOPOLE

JURISDICTION:

DISTURBED AREA:

PRESENT

OCCUPANCY TYPE:

CURRENT ZONING:

PIN #: 146699

I-1

VACANT

CITY OF  GRAHAM

T1 TITLE SHEET

N1 GENERAL NOTES

C1 SITE PLAN

C2

TOWER ELEVATIONC3

COMPOUND DETAIL

C4 SHELTER ELEVATIONS

SHELTER FOUNDATION DETAILS

ICE BRIDGE DETAILS (SIDE VIEW)

E. HANOVER RD

GRAHAM, NC 27253

UTILITIES:

POWER COMPANY:

CONTACT:

PHONE:

METER # NEAR SITE:

TELEPHONE COMPANY:

CONTACT:

PHONE:

PHONE # NEAR SITE:

PEDESTAL # NEAR SITE:

AT&T

CUSTOMER SERVICE

800-331-0500

UNKNOWN

UNKNOWN

E. HANOVER RD

GRAHAM, NC 27253

(ALAMANCE COUNTY)

DUKE ENERGY

CUSTOMER SERVICE

1-800-777-9898

500246

FENCE DETAILS

ICE BRIDGE DETAILS (FRONT VIEW)

C5

SITE PLAN

SCI SITE NAME:  GRANITE

TOWER ENGINEERING PROFESSIONALS

326 TRYON ROAD

RALEIGH, NC  27603

KIMBERLY S. MARTIN, P.E.

(919) 661-6351

COPLAND INC

PO BOX 1280

BURLINGTON, NC 27215

JASON COPLAND

(336) 226-0272

TOWER ENGINEERING PROFESSIONALS

326 TRYON ROAD

RALEIGH, NC  27603

FREDERICK T. HERB, P.E.

(919) 661-6351

SCI TOWERS, LLC

8000 SOUTH US HIGHWAY 1, STE 402

PORT ST. LUCIE, FL 34952

DAVE HERRING

(888)318-2803

POINT TO POINT LAND SURVEYORS, INC

810 JACKSON STREET

LOCUST GROVE, GA 30248

G. DARRELL TAYLOR, PLS

(678)565-4440

W 79Á 23' 48.29" (NAD '83)

N 36Á 04' 59.13" (NAD '83)LATITUDE

LONGITUDE

CODE COMPLIANCE

LATEST EDITIONS OF THE FOLLOWING:

4. 2012 NCEC

(NEC 2011 & ADDENDUM)

5. LOCAL BUILDING CODE

6. CITY/COUNTY ORDINANCES

1.  NORTH CAROLINA BUILDING CODE

     (2012 EDITION)

2.  NORTH CAROLINA CODE COUNCIL

3.  ANSI/TIA-222-G-2-2009

SIGNAGE DETAILS

24,246 Ñ SQ. FT.

LOCATION MAP

N

DRIVING DIRECTIONS CONTACT INFORMATION

1-A CERTIFICATION

TOWER OWNER:

SITE APPLICANT :

SURVEYOR:

CIVIL ENGINEER:

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER:

NAME:

ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP:

CONTACT:

PHONE:

PROPERTY OWNER:

NAME:

ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP:

CONTACT:

PHONE:

NAME:

ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP:

CONTACT:

PHONE:

NAME:

ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP:

CONTACT:

PHONE:

NAME:

ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP:

CONTACT:

PHONE:

NAME:

ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE, ZIP:

CONTACT:

PHONE:

GROUND ELEV. (AMSL) = 643.9' (NAVD '88)

T-1

3

MAW SCB

REV

0 05-05-14 ZONING

SCI SITE NAME: GRANITE

May 22, 2014

3

C10

CULVERT & DRIVEWAY DETAILS

C6

C7

C8

C9

FROM RALEIGH, NC: FOLLOW I-40W FOR ~45 MILES. TAKE EXIT 148 FOR NC 54

TOWARD GRAHAM/CHAPEL HILL. TURN RIGHT ONTO E HARDEN STREET ABD

FOLLOW FOR ~1.1 MI. TURN RIGHT ONTO N MAIN ST. AND FOLLOW FOR ~0.3

MI. TAKE 3RD RIGHT ONTO W HILL ST. TAKE FIRST LEFT ONTO POMEROY ST.

TURN RIGHT ONTO E HANOVER. SITE LOCATED ON RIGHT.

(155' OVERALL HEIGHT)

SCI TOWERS, LLC

8000 SOUTH US HIGHWAY 1, STE 402

PORT ST. LUCIE, FL 34952

DAVE HERRING

(888)318-2803

C1A SITE LAYOUT

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

C11

SOIL & EROSION CONTROL PLAN 

3

3

3

3

C12

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

GENERATOR FOUNDATION DETAILS

3



3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

MAW JAS

N-1

GENERAL

NOTES

GENERAL NOTES



E

.
 
H

A

N

O

V

E

R

 
R

O

A

D

N

O

R

F

O

L

K

 
S

O

U

T

H

E

R

N

 
R

A

I
L

R

O

A

D

LEGEND

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

MAW JAS

C-1

SITE PLAN

SITE PLAN

LEGEND

NOTES:



E

.
 
H

A

N

O

V

E

R

 
R

O

A

D

LEGEND

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

MAW JAS

C-1A

SITE LAYOUT

SITE LAYOUT

LEGEND

NOTES:



MAW SCB

C-2

COMPOUND DETAIL

COMPOUND

DETAIL

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING



N
O

T
E

S
:

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

MAW SCB

C-3

TOWER

ELEVATION

T
O

W
E

R
 
E

L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N



3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

ELEVATION B

EQUIPMENT LAYOUT ELEVATION A

ELEVATION C ELEVATION D

KCS ATH

C-4

SHELTER

ELEVATIONS



GENERAL STRUCTURAL NOTES: FOUNDATION NOTES:

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

KCS ATH

C-5

SHELTER FOUNDATION PLAN

SHELTER

FOUNDATION

DETAILS

CONNECTION DETAIL

PAD SECTION



SCB GMA

C-6

GENERATOR

FOUNDATION

DETAILS

GENERATOR FOUNDATION SECTION

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING



NOTE:

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

JHJ KSM

C-7

ICE BRIDGE DETAILS (SIDE VIEW)

ICE BRIDGE DETAILS

(SIDE VIEW)



3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

JHJ KSM

C-8

ICE BRIDGE DETAILS (FRONT VIEW)

ICE BRIDGE DETAIL

(FRONT VIEW)



3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

SCB GMA

C-9

GATE STOP / KEEPER DETAIL

FENCE

DETAILS

GATE DETENT DETAIL

TYPICAL FENCE ELEVATION

FENCE / BARBED WIRE ARM DETAIL



000

NOTES:

C-10

SIGNAGE DETAILS

MAW SCB

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

TYPICAL SIGNS AND SPECIFICATIONS



NOTES:

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

MAW JAS

C-11

CULVERT DETAIL

CULVERT & DRIVEWAY

DETAILS

STANDARD ROAD SECTION (GOOD SUBGRADE)

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE



TOTAL PARCEL AREA:

SITE DATA TABLE

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS:

EXISTING IMPERVIOUS:

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS:

PROPOSED COMPOUND

DISTURBED AREA:

TOTAL PROPOSED

DISTURBED AREA:

PROPOSED ACCESS DRIVE

DISTURBED AREA:

E

.
 
H

A

N

O

V

E

R

 
R

O

A

D

LEGEND

SECTION A-A

NOTES:

3

54182

GRANITE

May 22, 2014

0 05-05-14 ZONING

1 05-07-14 ZONING

2 05-09-14 ZONING

3 05-22-14 ZONING

MAW SCB

C-12

SOIL & EROSION

CONTROL PLAN

STANDARD SILT FENCE DETAIL SOIL & EROSION CONTROL PLAN



PLANNING BOARD 
Recommendation & Statement of Consistency 

Per NCGS 160A-383, zoning regulations shall be made in accordance with 
an adopted comprehensive plan and any other officially adopted plan 
that is applicable. The Planning Board shall advise and comment on 
whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the “City of Graham 
Growth Management Plan 2000-2020” and any other officially adopted 
plan that is applicable. The Planning Board shall provide a written 
recommendation to the City Council that addresses plan consistency and 
other matters as deemed appropriate by the Planning Board, but a 
comment by the Planning Board that a proposed amendment is 
inconsistent with the “City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020” shall not preclude consideration or approval of the proposed 
amendment by the City Council. 

 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL of the application as presented. 

 I move to recommend APPROVAL with the following conditions: 

o After the area is cleared, staff will evaluate the site to determine if the remaining existing 
vegetation meets the requirements of the ordinance and will require plantings if it does not. 

o A Building Permit will not be granted until the applicant submits letters from the FAA and FCC 
verifying that the agency’s requirements have been met and a letter certifying that the tower 
operations will not interfere with normal radio and television reception in the vicinity. 

o [Insert additional or other conditions] 

 I move to recommend DENIAL. 

 
 The application is consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-2020. 

 The application is not fully consistent with the City of Graham Growth Management Plan 2000-
2020. 

 

This report reflects the recommendation of the Planning Board, this the 17th day of June, 2014. 

Attest: 

  
Andy Rumley, Planning Board Chairman 

  
Martha Johnson, Secretary 

Granite Cellular Communication Tower 
(SUP1403) 

Type of Request 
Special Use Permit 

Meeting Dates 
Planning Board on June 17, 2014 

City Council on July 1, 2014 


	Agenda
	1. Minutes from 5/20/14
	2. Shannon Dr Internet Marketing Center (SUP1401)
	3. 220 W Harden Multifamily (RZ1405)
	4. Granite Cellular Communication Tower (SUP1403)

